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FEDERAL RESERVE SYSTEM

Formations of, Acquisitions by, and
Mergers of Bank Holding Companies

The companies listed in this notice
have applied to the Board for approval,
pursuant to the Bank Holding Company
Act of 1956 (12 U.S.C. 1841 et seq.)
(BHC Act), Regulation Y (12 CFR Part
225), and all other applicable statutes
and regulations to become a bank
holding company and/or to acquire the
assets or the ownership of, control of, or
the power to vote shares of a bank or
bank holding company and all of the
banks and nonbanking companies
owned by the bank holding company,
including the companies listed below.

The applications listed below, as well
as other related filings required by the
Board, are available for immediate
inspection at the Federal Reserve Bank
indicated. The application also will be
available for inspection at the offices of
the Board of Governors. Interested
persons may express their views in
writing on the standards enumerated in
the BHC Act (12 U.S.C. 1842(c)). If the
proposal also involves the acquisition of
a nonbanking company, the review also
includes whether the acquisition of the
nonbanking company complies with the
standards in section 4 of the BHC Act
(12 U.S.C. 1843). Unless otherwise
noted, nonbanking activities will be
conducted throughout the United States.
Additional information on all bank
holding companies may be obtained
from the National Information Center
website at www.ffiec.gov/nic/.

Unless otherwise noted, comments
regarding each of these applications
must be received at the Reserve Bank
indicated or the offices of the Board of
Governors not later than June 12, 2000.

A. Federal Reserve Bank of Atlanta
(Lois Berthaume, Vice President) 104
Marietta Street, N.W., Atlanta, Georgia
30303-2713:

1. Regions Financial Corporation,
Birmingham, Alabama; to merge with
Heritage Bancorp, Inc., Hutto, Texas,
and thereby indirectly acquire Texas
Heritage Bank, Hutto, Texas.

B. Federal Reserve Bank of Kansas
City (D. Michael Manies, Assistant Vice
President) 925 Grand Avenue, Kansas
City, Missouri 64198-0001:

1. Three Rivers Bankshares, Inc., Fort
Gibson, Oklahoma; to become a bank
holding company by acquiring 100
percent of the voting shares of Fort
Gibson Bancshares, Inc., Fort Gibson,
Oklahoma, and thereby indirectly
acquire Fort Gibson State Bank, Fort
Gibson, Oklahoma.

Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve
System, May 12, 2000.
Robert deV. Frierson,
Associate Secretary of the Board.
[FR Doc. 00-12413 Filed 5-16-00; 8:45 am]
BILLING CODE 6210-01-P

FEDERAL RESERVE SYSTEM

Notice of Proposals to Engage in
Permissible Nonbanking Activities or
to Acquire Companies That Are
Engaged in Permissible Nonbanking
Activities

The companies listed in this notice
have given notice under section 4 of the
Bank Holding Company Act (12 U.S.C.
1843) (BHC Act) and Regulation Y, (12
CFR Part 225) to engage de novo, or to
acquire or control voting securities or
assets of a company, including the
companies listed below, that engages
either directly or through a subsidiary or
other company, in a nonbanking activity
that is listed in § 225.28 of Regulation Y
(12 CFR 225.28) or that the Board has
determined by Order to be closely
related to banking and permissible for
bank holding companies. Unless
otherwise noted, these activities will be
conducted throughout the United States.

Each notice is available for inspection
at the Federal Reserve Bank indicated.
The notice also will be available for
inspection at the offices of the Board of
Governors. Interested persons may
express their views in writing on the
question whether the proposal complies
with the standards of section 4 of the
BHC Act. Additional information on all
bank holding companies may be
obtained from the National Information
Center website at www.ffiec.gov/nic/.

Unless otherwise noted, comments
regarding the applications must be
received at the Reserve Bank indicated
or the offices of the Board of Governors
not later than June 9, 2000.

A. Federal Reserve Bank of Chicago
(Phillip Jackson, Applications Officer)
230 South LaSalle Street, Chicago,
Illinois 60690—1414:

1. The PrivateBancorp, Inc., Chicago,
Ilinois; to acquire The PrivateBank (a
federal savings bank in organization), St.
Louis, Missouri, and thereby operate a
nonbank depository institution (a
federal savings bank) pursuant to
Section 4(c)(8) of the BHC Act and
section 225.28(b)(4)(ii) of Regulation Y.

Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve
System, May 11, 2000.

Jennifer J. Johnson,

Secretary of the Board.

[FR Doc. 00-12409 Filed 5-16-00; 8:45 am]
BILLING CODE 6210-01-P

FEDERAL RESERVE SYSTEM

Notice of Proposals To Engage in
Permissible Nonbanking Activities or
To Acquire Companies That Are
Engaged in Permissible Nonbanking
Activities

The companies listed in this notice
have given notice under section 4 of the
Bank Holding Company Act (12 U.S.C.
1843) (BHC Act) and Regulation Y, (12
CFR Part 225) to engage de novo, or to
acquire or control voting securities or
assets of a company, including the
companies listed below, that engages
either directly or through a subsidiary or
other company, in a nonbanking activity
that is listed in § 225.28 of Regulation Y
(12 CFR 225.28) or that the Board has
determined by Order to be closely
related to banking and permissible for
bank holding companies. Unless
otherwise noted, these activities will be
conducted throughout the United States.

Each notice is available for inspection
at the Federal Reserve Bank indicated.
The notice also will be available for
inspection at the offices of the Board of
Governors. Interested persons may
express their views in writing on the
question whether the proposal complies
with the standards of section 4 of the
BHC Act. Additional information on all
bank holding companies may be
obtained from the National Information
Center website at www.ffiec.gov/nic/.

Unless otherwise noted, comments
regarding the applications must be
received at the Reserve Bank indicated
or the offices of the Board of Governors
not later than May 31, 2000.

A. Federal Reserve Bank of San
Francisco (Maria Villanueva, Consumer
Regulation Group) 101 Market Street,
San Francisco, California 94105-1579:

1. Equitable PCI Bank, Inc., Makati
City, Philippines; to acquire PCI Express
Padala, Inc., Los Angeles, California,
and thereby to engage in money
remittance activities, previously
approved by Board Order in Norwest
Corporation, 81 Federal Reserve
Bulletin 1130 (1995).

Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve
System, May 11, 2000.

Jennifer J. Johnson,

Secretary of the Board.

[FR Doc. 00-12410 Filed 5-16—00; 8:45 am]|
BILLING CODE 6210-01-P

FEDERAL RESERVE SYSTEM
Sunshine Act Meeting

AGENCY HOLDING THE MEETING: Board of
Governors of the Federal Reserve
System.
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TIME AND DATE: 11 a.m., Monday, May
22, 2000.

PLACE: Marriner S. Eccles Federal
Reserve Board Building, 20th and C
Streets, N.W., Washington, D.C. 20551.
STATUS: Closed.

MATTERS TO BE CONSIDERED:

1. Personnel actions (appointments,
promotions, assignments,
reassignments, and salary actions)
involving individual Federal Reserve
System employees.

2. Any items carried forward from a
previously announced meeting.
CONTACT PERSON FOR MORE INFORMATION:
Lynn S. Fox, Assistant to the Board;
202-452-3204.

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION: You may
call 202-452-3206 beginning at
approximately 5 p.m. two business days
before the meeting for a recorded
announcement of bank and bank
holding company applications
scheduled for the meeting; or you may
contact the Board’s Web site at http://
www.federalreserve.gov for an
electronic announcement that not only
lists applications, but also indicates
procedural and other information about
the meeting.

Dated: May 12, 2000.
Robert deV. Frierson,
Associate Secretary of the Board.
[FR Doc. 00-12489 Filed 5-12—-00; 5:06 pm]
BILLING CODE 6210-01-P

FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION
[File No. 971 0070]

BMG Music; Capitol Records, Inc.;
Sony Music Entertainment Inc.; Time
Warner Inc.; and Universal Music &
Video Distribution Corp., et al.;
Analysis To Aid Public Comment

AGENCY: Federal Trade Commission.
ACTION: Proposed consent agreements.

SUMMARY: The consent agreements in
these five matters settle alleged
violations of federal law prohibiting
unfair or deceptive acts or practices or
unfair methods of competition. The
attached Analysis to Aid Public
Comment describes both the allegations
in the draft complaints that accompany
the consent agreements and the terms of
the consent orders—embodied in the
consent agreements—that would settle
these allegations.

DATES: Comments must be received on
or before June 9, 2000.

ADDRESSES: Comments should be
directed to: FTC/Office of the Secretary,
Room 159, 600 Pennsylvania Ave., NW,
Washington, D.C. 20580.

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT:
Richard Parker, FTC/H-374, 600
Pennsylvania Ave., NW, Washington,
D.C. 20580. (202) 326—3300.

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION: Pursuant
to Section 6(f) of the Federal Trade
Commission Act, 38 Stat. 721, 15 U.S.C.
46 and Section 2.34 of the Commission’s
Rules of Practice (16 CFR 2.34), notice
is hereby given that the above-captioned
consent agreements containing consent
orders to cease and desist, having been
filed with and accepted, subject to final
approval, by the Commission, have been
placed on the public record for a period
of thirty (30) days. The following
Analysis to Aid Public Comment
describes the terms of the consent
agreements, and the allegations in the
complaints. An electronic copy of the
full text of the consent agreements
package can be obtained from the FTC
Home Page (for May 10, 2000), on the
World Wide Web, at “http://
www.ftc.gov/ftc/formal.htm.” A paper
copy can be obtained from the FTC
Public Reference Room, Room H-130,
600 Pennsylvania Avenue, NW,
Washington, D.C. 20580, either in
person or by calling (202) 326-3627.

Public comment is invited. Comments
should be directed to: FTC/Office of the
Secretary, Room 159, 600 Pennsylvania.
Ave., NW, Washington, D.C. 20580. Two
paper copies of each comment should
be filed, and should be accompanied, if
possible, by a 32 inch diskette
containing an electronic copy of the
comment. Such comments or views will
be considered by the Commission and
will be available for inspection and
copying at its principal office in
accordance with Section 4.9(b)(6)(ii) of
the Commission’s Rules of Practice (16
CFR 4.9(b)(6)(ii)).

Analysis To Aid Public Comment on the
Proposed Consent Order

The Federal Trade Commission
(“Commission”) has accepted
agreements containing proposed
consent orders from the corporate
parents of the five largest distributors of
prerecorded music in the United States.
The five distributors, Sony Music
Distribution (“Sony”’), Universal Music
& Video Distribution (“UNI"’), BMG
Distribution (“BMG”’), Warner-Elektra-
Atlantic Corporation (“WEA”’), and EMI
Music Distribution (“EMI”), account for
approximately 85% of the industry’s
$13.7 billion in domestic sales. The
agreements would settle charges by the
Commission that these five companies
violated Section 5 of the Federal Trade
Commission Act by engaging in
practices that restricted competition in

the domestic market for prerecorded
music.

The proposed consent orders have
been placed on the public record for
thirty (30) days for receipt of comments
by interested persons. Comments
received during this period will become
part of the public record. After thirty
(30) days, the Commission will review
the agreements and the comments
received and will decide whether it
should withdraw from the agreements
or make final the agreements’ proposed
orders.

The purpose of this analysis is to
invite public comment concerning the
consent order. This analysis is not
intended to constitute an official
interpretation of the agreement and
order or to modify its terms in any way.

There are five separate complaints
and proposed consent orders in this
matter, one of each of the distributors,
which are virtually identical with the
exception of minor variations related to
the corporate structure of each
respondent.

Analysis

The complaints allege that all five
distributors have engaged in acts and
practices that have unreasonably
restrained competition in the market for
prerecorded music in the United States
through their adoption, implementation
and enforcement of Minimum
Advertised Price (“MAP”’) provisions of
their Cooperative Advertising Programs.

These five companies, which
collectively dominate this market,
adopted significantly stricter MAP
programs between late 1995 and 1996.
Under the new MAP provisions,
retailers seeking any cooperative
advertising funds were required to
observe the distributors’ minimum
advertised prices in all media
advertisements, even in advertisements
funded solely by the retailers. Retailers
seeking any cooperative funds were also
required to adhere to distributors’
minimum advertised prices on all in-
store signs and displays, regardless of
whether the distributor contributed to
their cost.

Failure to adhere to the respondents’
MAP provisions for any particular
music title would subject the retailer to
a suspension of all cooperative
advertising funding offered by the
distributor for an extended period,
typically 60 to 90 days.! The severity of
these penalties ensured that even the

1BMG'’s policy differed slightly. Under the BMG
MAP provisions, the suspension of all cooperative
advertising funding required a finding of two MAP
violations. However, BMG MAP provisions also
established a suspension of up to a year for repeated
violations.
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